
Bist du sportlich?


Ich bin … sportlich.

… sehr…

… ziemlich …

… nicht sehr …


Was spielst du?


Ich spiele …

… Badminton

… Basketball

… Fußball

… Wasserball

… Eishockey

… Tennis

… Volleyball

… Tischtennis

… Handball 

Are you sporty?


I am … sporty 
… very…

… quite …

… not very …


What do you play


I play … 
… badminton

… basketball

… football

… water polo

… ice hockey

… tennis

… volleyball

… table tennis

… handball

Was machst du in deiner 
Freizeit?


Ich fahre Rad.

Ich spiele Gitarre.

Ich lese.

Ich schwimme.

Ich fahre Skateboard.

Ich mache Judo.

Ich sehe fern.

Ich tanze.

Ich reite.

Ich gehe ins Kino.

Ich höre Musik. 

Ich gehe einkaufen.

Ich spiele Xbox oder Wii.

Ich gehe in den Park.

Ich gehe in die Stadt.

Ich esse Hamburger oder Pizza.

Ich chille.

Ich mache Sport.

Was machst du in deiner 
Freizeit?


I cycle

I play the guitar

I read

I swim

I skateboard

I do judo

I watch tv

I dance

I go horse riding

I go to the cinema

I listen to music

I go shopping

I play X-Box or Wii

I go to the park

I go (in) to town

I eat Hamburger or Pizza

I relax

I do sport

Wie findest du das?


Ich finde es …

Es ist …

… irre

… super

… toll

… cool

… gut

… nicht schlecht

… okay

… langweilig

… nervig

… stinklangweilig

… furchtbar

What do you think of 
it?

I think it’s …

It is  …

… amazing

… super

… great

… cool

… good

… not bad

… okay

… boring

… annoying

… deadly dull / boring

… awful / terrible

Wann machst du das?

Wie oft machst du das?


am Abend

am Wochenende

(sehr/ziemlich/nicht so) oft

jeden Tag

einmal pro Woche

zweimal pro Monat

immer

manchmal

nie

jeden Morgen

heute 
morgen

montags

nächste Woche

in zwei Wochen

When do you do it?

How often do you do it?


in the evening

at the weekend

(very/quite/not so) often

every day

once a week

twice a month

always 

sometimes

never

every morning

today

tomorrow

on Mondays

next week

in two weeks

Was machst du am 
Computer / auf dem Handy?


Ich chatte mit Freunden auf 
Facebook.

Ich mache Fotos oder Filme. 
Ich suche (und lese) Infos für 
die Hausaufgaben.

Ich simse. 
Ich lade Musik herunter. 
Ich sehe Videos.

Ich surfe im Internet. 
Ich spiele Computerspiele. 
Ich telefoniere mit Freunden.

What do you do on the 
computer / phone?


I chat with friends on Facebook


I take photos / make films

I search for (and read) 
information for homework


I text

I download music

I watch videos

I surf the internet

I play computer games

I phone friends

Meinungen


… sehr gern …

… gern …

… ziemlich gern …

… nicht gern … 

… lieber…

… am liebsten … 

Opinions (like/dislike)


really like …ing

like … ing

quite like …ing

don’t like … ing

prefer … ing

like most of all … ing

In a normal sentence these words follow immediately after 
the verb, e.g: 	 ich spiele gern Tennis

	 	 ich sehe am liebsten fern		 

	 	 ich lade jeden Tag Musik herunter

Present Tense 	 (e.g. I play / I am playing / I do play)


spielen	 	 	 ich spiele  (I play	)          du spielst  (you play)          er spielt  (he plays)          wir spielen  (we play)          sie spielen  (they play)

chatten	 	 	 ich chatte  (I chat)         du chattest  (you chat)       er chattet  (he chats)       wir chatten  (we chat)         sie chatten  (they chat)


fahren → er fährt;	 sehen → er sieht	 	 lesen → er liest		 essen → er isst		 laden → lädtVE
RB

S
Was machst du in deiner Freizeit?



 
Wie geht’s?


Mir ist … / Es geht mir … / Mir 
geht’s …

… gut

… nicht so gut

… schlecht

Ich fühle mich nicht so gut

Mir ist übel


Ich bin … krank

… seit zwei Tagen …

… seit einer Woche …


Ich war … krank

… letzte Woche …

… vor einer Woche …

How are you?


I’m …


fine / well

not so well / don’t feel to good

not well / feel awful

I don’t feel too good

I feel sick


I am ill / sick

I have been ill for two days

I have been ill for a week


I was ill / sick

… last week …

… a week ago …

Bist du gesund?


Ich bin … (un)gesund

sehr

relativ

ziemlich

weder … noch …


Ich bin in guter / schlechter Form

Die Gesundheit ist mir wichtig

Ich bin aktiv

Ich könnte aktiver sein

Ich esse (un)gesund

Ich esse fünf Portionen Obst und Gemüse

Ich muss Fastfood aufgeben

Ich trinke am Wochenende Alkohol

Ich schlafe 7-8 Stunden pro Nacht

Mein Leben ist nicht stressig

Ich rauche nie

Ich entspanne mich, wenn ich kann


Um fit zu bleiben, …

Um mich zu entspannen …


Are you healthy?


I am … (un)healthy

… very …

… relatively …

…quite …

… neither … nor …


I am in good / bad shape

My health is important to me

I am active

I could be more active

I eat (un)healthily

I eat five portions a day

I need to give up junk food

I drink alcohol at the weekend

I sleep 7-8 hours a night

My life isn’t stressful

I never smoke

I relax when I can


To stay fit, …

To relax, …
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Kartoffel  (-n)

Käse  

Keks  (-e)

Kirsche  (-n)

Kotelett  

Kuchen  

Limonade  

Margarine  

Marmelade  

Melone  (-n)

Milch  

Mineralwasser  

Nudeln (pl)

Obst  

Öl  

Omelett  

Pfeffer  

Pfirsich  (-e)

Pflaume  (-n)

Pilz  (-e)

Pommes  

Pommes frites (pl)

Praline  (-n)

Reis  

Rührei  

Saft  

Sahne  

Salat  

Salz  

Schaschlik  

Schinken  

Schnitzel  

Schokolade  

Schweinefleisch  

Spiegelei  

Spinat  

Sprudel(wasser)  / 

Suppe  

Süßigkeiten  

Tabak  

Tee  

Teigwaren (pl)

potato

cheese

biscuit

cherry

cutlet

cake

lemonade

margarine

jam

melon

milk

mineral water

pasta

fruit

oil

omelette

pepper

peach

plum

mushroom

chips

chips

chocolates

rice

scrambled egg

juice

cream

salad

salt

kebab

ham

escalope

chocolate

pork

fried egg

spinach

sparkling water

soup

sweets

tobacco

tea

pastry

Lebensmittel


Alkohol  

Ananas  

Apfel  (Äpfel)

Apfelsine  (-n)

Aprikose  (-n)

Banane  (-n)

Bier  

Birne  (-n)

Blumenkohl  

Bockwurst  

Bohne  (-n)

Bonbon  

Braten  

Bratwurst  

Brot  

Brötchen  

Butterbrot  (-e)

Chips (pl)

Currywurst  

Ei  (-er)

Eis  

Erbse  (-n)

Erdbeere (-n)

Essig  

Fett  

Fisch  

Fleisch  

Frikadelle (-n)

Fruchtsaft  

Frühstück  

Gemüse  

Getränk (-e)

Gurke (-n)

Haferflocken (pl)

Hähnchen  

Hamburger  

Himbeere (-n)  

Joghurt  

Kaffee  

Kakao  

Karotte (-n)

Food items


alcohol

pineapple

apple

orange

apricot

banana

beer

pear

cauliflower

hot-dog

bean

sweets

roast

sausage

bread

rolls

sandwich

crisps

curried sausage

egg

ice (cream)

pea

strawberry

vinegar

fat

fish

meat

meatballs

fruit juice

breakfast

vegetable

drink

cucumber

cereal

chicken

hamburger

raspberry

yoghurt

coffee

cocoa

carrot

Thunfisch  

Toastbrot  

Tomate  (-n)

Torte  (-n)

Truthahn  

Vanille  

Vollmilch  

Wasser  

Wein  

Wurst (Würste) 

Zigarette  (-n)

Zitrone  (-n)

Zucker  

Zwiebel  


Biokost  

Ente  

Forelle  

Gans  

Honig  

Kalbfleisch  

Knoblauch  

Kopfsalat  

Lachs  

Lammfleisch  

Mehl  

Müsli  

Nuss  (Nüsse)

Pute  

Rindfleisch  

tuna

sliced bread

tomato

tart / flan

turkey

vanilla

full milk

water

wine

sausage

cigarette

lemon

sugar

onion


organic food

duck

trout

goose

honey

veal

garlic

lettuce

salmon

lamb

flour

muesli

nut

turkey

beef

Was isst du?


essen

ich esse

du isst

er isst

wir essen

sie essen


ich habe … gegessen

du hast … gegessen

er hat … gegessen

wir haben … gegessen

sie haben … gegessen


trinken

ich trinke

du trinkst

er trinkt

wir trinken

sie trinken


ich habe … getrunken

du hast  …getrunken

er hat  …getrunken

wir haben … getrunken

sie haben … getrunken


zum Frühstück

zu Mittag

zum Abendessen

zum Abendbrot

zwischendurch


die Mahlzeit [-en]


Was isst du gern?


Ich mag (nicht)

Ich esse gern …

Ich trinke nicht gern …

Ich kann nicht … essen

Ich kann … nicht leiden

Ich darf nicht … essen

Ich möchte … probieren


What do you eat?


to eat

I eat / am eating

you eat / are eating

he eats / is eating

we eat / are eating

they eat / are eating


I ate / have eaten

you ate / have eaten

he ate / has eaten

we ate / have eaten

they ate / have eaten


to drink

I drink / am drinking

you drink / are drinking

he drinks / is drinking

we drink / are drinking

they drink / are drinking


I drank / have drunk

you drank / have drunk

he drank / has drunk

we drank / have drunk

they drank/ have drunk


for breakfast

for lunch

for dinner

for dinner

between meals


meal


What do you like to eat?


I like (don’t like)

I like eating …

I don’t like drinking …

I can’t eat …

I can’t stand …

I’m not allowed to eat …

I would like to try …
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Asking questions:


Do you …? etc  


Start with the verb:

‣ Isst du Fleisch?

‣ Trinkst du Alkohol?


What? Where? When? 


Or with a question word:

‣ Was isst du zu Mittag?

‣ Wo essen wir Pizza

‣ Wann haben wir Frühstück?



Im Restaurant


Ich möchte einen Tisch … reservieren

… für eine Person …

… für zwei Personen …

Ich habe einen Tisch reserviert

Für wann? 

Für wieviele Personen? 

Haben Sie einen Tisch frei?


Wo möchten Sie sitzen?

Haben Sie einen Tisch …

… in der Ecke?

… neben der Tür?

… neben dem Fenster?

… neben der Küche?

… neben der Toilette?

… vorne / hinten

… links / rechts


Herr Ober!

Fräulein!

Bitte schön

Die Speisekarte bitte

die Weinkarte

das Tagesmenü

die Spezialität des Hauses


Was bestellen Sie?

Als Vorspeise nehme ich…

Als Hauptgericht esse ich…

Als Nachspeise hätte ich gerne…


Was empfehlen Sie?

Guten Appetit!

Schmeckt’s?

Das schmeckt

Das hat mir geschmeckt


Zahlen bitte

Die Rechnung, bitte

Zusammen oder getrennt?

In the restaurant


I’d like ( to reserve) a table

… for one person

… for two people

I’ve reserved a table

For what time?

For how many people? 

Do you have a table free? 


Where would you like to sit? Do 
you have a table …

… in the corner?

… next to the door?

… next to the window?

… next to the kitchen?

… near the toilets?

… at the front / back?

… on the left / right?


Waiter!

Waitress!

Can I help you / There you go

The menu please

wine list

set menu

house special


What would you like to order?

As a starter, I’ll have …

As main course, I’ll have …

As dessert I’d like …


What do you recommend?

Have a nice meal!

Everything okay with the meal?

It tastes good / everything’s fine

(The meal) It was good


The bill, please / I’d like to pay

The bill, please

Together or separately?

Ich bin nicht zufrieden!


Ich bin … gegangen

Ich habe … bestellt

Die Suppe war kalt

Es gab eine Fliege in meiner Suppe!

Die Bedienung war langsam

Der Service war so schlecht

I’m not happy!


I went …

I ordered …

The soup was cold

There was a fly in my soup

The service was slow

The service was so bad

Im Laden


Ich möchte …

Ich hätte gern …

Geben Sie mir …

Haben Sie …

… zwei hundert Gramm

… ein halbes Kilo

… ein Liter

… eine Flasche

… eine Tafel

… eine Tube

… eine Dose

… ein Paket

… eine Schachtel

… vier Stück


Bitte schön?

Kann ich Ihnen helfen?

Sonst noch etwas?

Wäre das alles?

Was kostet das?

Stimmt das?

Das stimmt.

In the shop


I would like …

I would like …

Give me …

Do you have … / Have you got …

200g (of)

500g (of)

a litre (of)

a bottle (of)

a bar (of)

a tube (of)

a can / jar / tin (of)

a packet (of)

a box / punnet (of)

four (of)


Can I help you?

Can I help you?

Anything else?

Is that everything?

What does that cost?

Is that correct?

That’s correct

Containers and Quantities


You do not need to translate the 
word “of” when stating or asking 
for containers or quantities.


Example:


eine Flasche Cola 

↳ a bottle of Coke


500g / ein halbes Kilo Zucker 

↳ 500g of sugar

Be polite!


Don’t forget when to 
‘duzen’ or ‘siezen’


If you usually address 
someone by their first 
name use ‘du’

‣ Hast du ..? 

‣ Was isst du?


If you normally use a 
title (Mr, Miss, Sir etc) 
then use ‘Sie’:

‣ Haben Sie

‣ Was essen Sie



 

Was liest du?


lesen

ich lese / habe gelesen

du liest / hast gelesen

er liest / hat gelesen

wir lesen / haben gelesen

sie lesen / haben gelesen


E-Book nt. [-s]

Illustrierte f. [-n]

Blog nt. [-s]

Zeitschrift f. [-n]

Magazin nt. [-e]

Taschenbuch nt. [-bücher]

Zeitung f. [en]

Comic m. [-s]


Buch nt. [Bücher]

Biografie f. [-n]

Roman m. [-e]

Fantasyroman m. [-e]

Komödie f. [-n]

Krimi m. [-s]

Geschichte f. [-n]

Liebesgeschichte f. [-n]

Horrorgeschichte f. [-n]

Science-Fiction-Buch

Thriller m. [-]

What do you read?


to read

I read /  I (have) read

you read / you (have) read

he reads / he (has) read

we read / we (have) read

they read / they (have) read


e-book

magazine

blog

magazine

magazine

paperback

newspaper

comic


book

biography

novel

fantasy novel

comedy

crime

story

love-story

horror story

science-fiction book

thriller

Bist du eine Leseratte?


Leseratte f. [n]

Wie oft liest du?

nie

selten

ab und zu

ziemlich oft

täglich

einmal pro Woche / pro Monat

mehrmals im Jahr

nur, wenn ich muss

Ich habe keine Zeit zum Lesen

Mein Lieblingsbuch

Das letzte Buch, das ich gelesen habe, war …

Are you a bookworm?


bookworm

How often do you read?

never

rarely

now and again / sometimes

quite often

every day / daily

one a week / month

several times a year

only when I have to / need to

I don’t have time to read

My favourite book

The last book I read, was …

Wo liest du?


wenn ich im Bus / Auto unterwegs bin

im Bett (um einzuschlafen)

im Schlafzimmer 

auf dem Sofa

in der Schule (weil ich muss)

im Klassenzimmer 

auf dem Klo

im Garten (um mich zu entspannen)

auf dem Strand (wenn ich auf Urlaub bin)

auf meinem Tablet

auf meinem E-Reader

Wo liest du?


when I travel by bus / car

in bed (to fall asleep)

in my bedroom

on the sofa

in school (because I have to)

in class

on the toilet

in the garden (to relax)

on the beach (when I’m on holiday)

on my tablet / iPad

on my e-reader / Kindle

The Imperfect Tense (or Simple Past)


What is it and when do I use it?

‣ The Simple Past is used in written German (stories, books, newspapers) to describe things in 

the past. 

‣ A few common verbs are also frequently used in the simple past, in everyday German so you 

need to recognise them and use the main ones.

infinitive haben sein müssen dürfen können wollen

ich hatte war musste durfte konnte wollte

du hattest warst musstest durftest konntest wolltest

er/sie hatte war musste durfte konnte wollte

wir hatten waren mussten durften konnten wollten

sie hatten waren mussten durften konnten wollten

English had was/were had to was/were 
allowed to

was/were 
able to / 

could

wanted to

es gab

ich sagte

ich fragte

there was / were

I said

I asked



Was für Musik hörst du gern?


klassische Musik

Rapmusik

Popmusik

Tanzmusik

Opernmusik

Country-Musik

Rockmusik

RnB-Musik 

Indie-Musik

Heavy-metal-Musik

Volksmusik

Jazzmusik

Schlager


Ich interessiere mich für …

… viele Musikrichtungen

… Country und Western

… ist für mich die beste Musik


Musiksammlung (von)

Live Musik

What music do you like listening to?


classical music

rap music

pop music 

dance music

opera music

country music

rock music

RnB music

indie music

Heavy Metal

folk music

jazz

German hits


I am interested in …

… lots of types of music

… Country and Western

… is the best musik for me


music collection (of)

live-music

Warum hörst du gern …?


Die Texte sind gut.

Der Beat ist cool.

Sie ist immer zu laut.

Er ist mein Lieblingsrapper.

Sie hat einen guten Rhythmus.

Sie wirkt erholsam.

Sie ist romantisch.

Die Melodie ist doof.

Die Typen in der Gruppe tragen 
modische Klamotten.

Die Lieder sind mal rockig mal 
sanft.

Das ist keine Tanzmusik.

Die Melodien sind stark.


Lied nt. [-er]

Sänger m. [-]

Sängerin f. [-nen]

Gruppe f. [-n]

Band f. [-s]

Why do you like listening to ..?


The lyrics are good.

The beat is cool.

It’s always too loud.

He’s my favourite rapper.

It has a good rhythm.

It’s relaxing.

It’s romantic

The melody is stupid.

The band members wear cool clothes. 


The songs are sometimes rocky and 
sometimes soft.

It isn’t dance music.

The melodies are strong.


song

singer (male)

singer (female)

group / band

band / group

Bist du musikalisch?


Musik ist sehr wichtig für mich

Ich höre jeden Tag / ständig Musik

Ich spiele ein Instrument [-e]

Ich spiele …

… seit einem Jahr / fünf Jahren …

… Gitarre

… (Block)Flöte

… Klavier

… Schlagzeug

… Keyboard

… Geige

… in einer Gruppe / Band

… im (Schul)Orchester


Ich spielte in der Grundschule …

Are you musical?


Music is very important to me

I listen to music every day / constantly

I play an instrument

I play …

(I’ve been playing) for a year / five years

… guitar

…(recorder) flute

… piano

… drums

… keyboard

… violin

… in a group / band

… in the (school) orchestra


I used to play … at primary school

Wie hörst du Musik?


herunterladen

Ich lade Musik herunter

Ich habe … heruntergeladen

downloaden

Ich downloade

Ich bekomme iTunes Karten geschenkt

Ich höre Musik…

… auf meinem Handy

… auf meinem Laptop

… auf meinem Smartphone

… mit Kopfhörern

.., wenn ich Hausaufgaben mache

.., wenn ich jogge

… mal auf dem Handy, mal im Radio

How do you listen to music?


to download

I download music

I downloaded 

to download

I download

I get given iTunes cards

I listen to music …

… on my phone

… on my laptop

… on my smartphone

… with earphones / headphones

.., when I do homework

.., when I’m jogging

…sometimes on my phone, 
sometimes on the radio
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Warst du je auf einem Konzert?


ich war / wir waren (auf einem Konzert)

gehen (ich bin … gegangen)

auf ein Konzert / auf ein Fest / zu Latitude

fahren (ich bin … gefahren)

sehen (ich habe … gesehen)

bleiben (ich bin … geblieben)

… in einem Zelt …

… in einem Wohnwagen …

Have you ever been to a concert?


I was / we were … (at a concert / festival)

to go (I went)

to a concert / festival / Latitude

to go / travel (I went / travelled)

to see (I saw)

to stay (I stayed)

… in a tent

… in a caravan

es hat geregnet

es war heiß und sonnig

hören (ich habe … gehört)

singen (ich habe … gesungen)

tanzen (ich habe … getanzt)

kaufen (ich habe … gekauft)

treffen (ich habe … getroffen)

it rained

it was hot and sunny

to listen ( I listened)

to sing (I sang)

to dance (I danced)

to buy (I bought)

to meet (i met)

Sentence starters (don’t forget verb 2nd) 
Glücklicherweise	 	 	 Luckily 
Leider	 	 	 	 	 Unfortunately 
Am ersten/zweiten/letzten Tag   	 On the 1st/2nd/3rd/last day 
Während der zweiten Woche	 	 During the 2nd week

Relative clauses 
When you want to say which (or sometimes ‘that’)  …, you use der die or das 
depending on the gender of the subject of the sentence: 

• Wir haben einen Campingplatz gefunden, der unheimlich schön war 
• Ich habe eine Pizza gegessen, die lecker war 
• Es gab ein Schwimmbad, das sehr kalt war 

When you want to say where …you use wo 
Wir sind nach Frankreich gefahren, wo das Wetter immer heiß ist.

Qualifiers 
ein bisschen	 	 a bit 
ziemlich	 	 quite 
sehr	 	 	 very 
unheimlich	 	 very 
total	 	 	 totally 
überhaupt nicht	 not at all

Subordinate clauses 
These don’t change the word order: 
und	 and 
aber	 but 
denn	 as/because 
oder	 or 
e.g: Ich habe einen Kanutour gemacht und 
es war sehr spannend

Opinions 
unglaublich	 unbelievable 
doof	 stupid 
furchtbar	 terrible 
todlangweilig	 deadly boring 
schlecht	 bad 
schlimm	 bad 
schrecklich	 terrible 
okay	  
angenehm	 pleasant/nice 
ausgezeichnet	 excellent 
fantastisch	 fantastic 
faszinierend	 fascinating 
herrlich	 great 
klasse	 great 
lustig	 funny 
spitze	 great 
toll	 great 
wunderbar	 wonderful 
wunderschön	 wonderful 
spannend	 exciting 
entspannend	 relaxing

Infinitive clauses - use with zu + infinitive 
Es war leicht  …            It’s easy to 
Ich hatte vor …	 I intended to 
Ich hatte Lust …	 I wanted to 
Es war schwer …	 It’s difficult to 
Es machte Spaß …	 It was fun to 
Wir fanden es toll …	 We found it great to 
Ich hatte keine Zeit …	 I had no time to 
um …	 in order to 

Eg: Ich hatte Lust in die Stadt zu gehen 
      Wir fanden es toll einen Radtour zu machen 
      Ich bin nach Italien gefahren, um segeln zu lernen 

Das hat mir gefallen	 	 I liked it 
Das hat ihr gefallen	 	 She liked it 
Das hat ihm gefallen	 	 He liked it 
Es war sehr interessant	 It was very interesting 
Es war ziemlich langweilig	 It was quite boring

Modal verbs past tense - use with infinitive 

Ich wollte    I wanted 	             Ich durfte   	 I was allowed 
Ich musste  I had to 	 	 Ich sollte	 I should 
Ich konnte   I could 	 	 Ich mochte	 I liked 
Eg Ich wollte Paella essen

These send the verb to the end: 
als	 when (one occasion, past tense) 
wenn	 when/if (present/future tenses) 
bevor	 before 
bis	 until 
da	 since 
damit	 so that 
dass	 that 
nachdem	 after 
ob	 whether 
obwohl	 although 
während	 while 
was	 what 
wie	 how 
weil	 because 
e.g: Wir fahren nach Spanien, weil das 
Wetter schön ist 
Ich fahre nach Frankreich, wenn ich genug 
Geld habe 
Ich habe Paella gegessen, als ich in 
Spanien war 

Past Tense 
Speaking / Writing Mat


